OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

Tuesday, September 18, 2007

SAU Office
7 p.m.

Board Administration
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon, Dick Bergeron, Supt.
Ray Cote, Gail Cromwell, Don Johnson, Asst. Supt.
Butch Estey, Bart Goodeve, Marian Alese, B.A.
Dan Harper, Craig Hicks, Linda Potter, SpEd.
Bill McKinnon, Tom Welden Dick Dunning, SMS

Sue Copley, PES
Beth San Martino, CVEA Sue Dell, CVHS

Gib West, GBS

Deb Ames, CVHS

Steve Bartsch, CVHS

Jeanie West, SMS

Jon Hall, CVHS

MINUTES

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

2. Minutes (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 1-18)
a. September 4, 2007

Craig Hicks moved to accept the minutes of the September 4, 2007 meeting. Butch Estey
second. Dan Harper, Beverly Bacon, and Bill McKinnon abstained. All else in favor.

3. Public Comment

a. Open Forum for Revised Drug Policy Language (Pgs. 19-39)
Tom referenced information that is included in tonight® packet. He opened up the floor for comments
and questions. Tom said that many discussions among the Board have taken place.
Sue Dell said that this information was shared with the Student Assistance Team for feedback. In
addition, the policies were brought to the Student Council for review. Parents and students have
been invited to come to the CVHS Open House one half hour in advance for information at 6:00 p.m.
Hannah Schaefer, CVHS student said that she appreciates the efforts being made to improve the
atmosphere at the high school and to welcome the LADC. She noted that no community service was
required of a student if one did not pursue counseling. Bart said that community service was not to
be a punishment. If you accept counseling the hope is that one moves down a path for help. The
other path is punitive and community service was not part of the punishment. Hannah added that
discussion about external suspension took place. Many that have drug problems have lack of
parental presence or support in the first place. She asked how parental support would



come into play in this instance. Bart said that this discussion took place. He said that the same
concern exists among the Board. Better to have a student in the school rather than out. There would
be a resource problem with the in-school option. Bart said that he hopes that factors Hannah pointed
out would come into consideration when deciding upon suspension length. Butch said that having a
LADC on staff with the ability to talk to students is an asset. Given a patrticular situation it might be
best to have a student out of school.

Hannah Webber said that the policy states infractions upon officers, and other co-curricular
participants would result in the student® removal from the clubs and can®serve until the following
year. She feels that the commitment should continue for students in such organizations. There
should be a meeting between the student, the advising team, and administrator to determine
participation. Hannah Schaeffer added that students could head in a larger downward spiral should
they not be allowed to participate in activities. She suggested that they should be required to
continue their commitment in their sport or club. Participation in the activity, rather it be with a coach
or advisor, should be discussed. She suggests that they be given the less favorable duties of the
student® activities such as being the water boy.

Bart said that the class officers and leaders are setting a higher standard. Mistakes happen but
mistakes have consequences. Bart said that the bar is set a little higher for those in leadership
position. Hannah said that students in leadership positions have been elected into those positions by
their peers.

Tom Welden said that a student couldn® be forced to participate in activities such as those less
desirable. It is not enforceable. Hannah Schaeffer added that they were hoping for more consistency
between clubs and athletics. She is looking for more balance. Bart clarified that the same treatment
for team and club members is the request. Lastly, Hannah said that she was looking for a third tier
for those dealing drugs in school. Selling in school is a much bigger offense than doing drugs in
school. Corruption of the environment in the school is taking place. A five or ten day suspension for
one distributing drugs in school is not fair compared to one taking drugs or alcohol on campus.
Hannah is suggesting a suspension longer than five or ten days. The police would have some say in
the consequence.

Craig Hicks asked if Hannah® group is looking for more extreme consequences for a student who is
dealing drugs. Hannah said that they were looking for a larger consequence. They are trying to
balance going to a Juvenile Center placement versus suspension. Craig asked if it were appropriate
that the group prefer that the student be expelled for a period of 30 days. Hannah said that it is case
specific. Hannah said that if the intent is to deal drugs, the student should not be allowed in school.
Bart said that if a student made a bad decision, the opportunity to make a good one would be made
available by seeking counseling. He added that just getting counseling from a student, as lip service
is not acceptable. If a student makes a mistake, deals a little dope, goes through counseling, the goal
is to experience a positive outcome. The problem is the student who is dedicated to dealing drugs. If
a student accepts counseling but makes no progress, the student can be suspended for up to one
year. Bart said that there is risk of a huge shopping list in matrix form to determine a consequence.
Tom said that things can be tweaked, for example wording can be added stating that the
Superintendent has the discretion to hand down a different consequence. If someone is suspended
for a lengthy time, the district is still required to provide that student an education.

Mary Allen asked if they see a difference in an attempt to sell and intent to distribute it among their
peers. Hannah said that if a student came into school with a bottle of alcohol and shared it without
the intent to give it to a friend is different than coming to school to deal.

Butch said that intending, giving, and selling all fall under the same category under the law. It is all
looked at the same.

Tom thanked both Hannah Schaeffer and Hannah Webber for their very valuable input tonight.

Craig said that it is amazing that this group has taken this as seriously as the Board has. They are



working toward a common goal.

Deb Ames, Assistant Principal at CVHS, said that there are very few times that a student has a
second offense with use. She echoed the difference between selling to other students and being
under the influence. She encouraged keeping use and first and second offense apart from selling or
distributing. The whole community is affected.

Deb said that she does not see as much about parent responsibility in the policy as she would like.
Craig said that he would like to understand the differences in quantity of substance and how it lumps
you into different categories. He asked the difference between expulsion and suspension. Dick said
that expulsion eliminates a student from the student population.

Bart said that the committee needs to meet to consider the comments provided tonight.

Marian wondered why we want to lump staff and students together. There are different liabilities for
staff. She said that the next steps for staff are not addressed. She said that she was unsure if we
wanted to put students and staff in the same policy. She felt that we do not. She said we should
remove reference to staff.

Bart said that this is an existing policy that is part of something that is in the handbook.

Dick said that they need to go look at policy and determine if this is existing policy or new.

Marian said that it needs to mesh.

Bart said that the policy is not a student policy; it is a drug and alcohol use statement.

It is what we as a School Board believe. Tom Welden said that it would be double-checked.

Hannah Schaeffer said that a student distributing is not wanted in the school however they are
sympathetic to the students needs.

Steve Bartsch said that it is great work putting this together. Having a LADC on board is wonderful.
He said that he is not sure what the policy is on reviewing the policy but would be interested in
looking at this in the future to see how it is working.

b. Ann Moller BPresentation of 2007 Issue of PULP

Ann Moller, Chrystianna Manoloulis, and David Davis distributed the 2007 copy of CVHS Pulp
Literary Magazine. Ann Moller explained that submissions are due by April vacation for the next
publication. Craig asked how submissions are chosen. Ann explained that it is juried. It is a process,
which involves the selection of entries. The entire look of the magazine is considered in the end. The
printing is done by Sterling Printers. It is put out to bid.

Sue Dell said that this was the inspiration of Ann Moller who has been producing this for at least eight
years. She has taken on the responsibility in this work of love. Ann said that submissions as well as
committee members are open to everyone.

4. Consent Agenda
a. Peterborough Elementary School 2007 Blue Ribbon Award (Pgs. 40-41)

Dick Bergeron said that Susan Copley has recently won an award. He asked Susan to speak about
the Blue Ribbon Award and what it signifies. Susan Copley said that they are not the only school to
win this award. Several are given around the state. It is a good way for the schools to assess
themselves. Community volunteers and other volunteers are assessed. It encourages them to push
for more quantity and quality volunteers in the building. She thanked the Board and Dr. Bergeron for
their support.

b. Athletic Standings b Varsity Teams
W-L-T

Football 2 -

Boys Soccer 2 -

Girls Soccer 2 -

NN O
(N ]



Field Hockey 2-3-0
Golf 7-2D0

5. Superintendent® Report and Presentation of Business

a. Proposed Email Retention Policy Information (Pgs. 42-43)
Dick said that the email system doesn®have the ability to archive. He asked for legal advice. He
said that tonight® packet includes a lawyer® opinion on archiving email information. This transpired
before any legal matters came to. This dovetails into a suggestion in which the Board would benefit
from an attorney coming in to discuss legal guidance on such issues. Issues will be addressed at a
future session. Dick said that the ability to archive can be provided but has not been pursued. Dick
wants to check from a legal perspective if this is an option we want to pursue.
Bart asked what the records retention policy was. Marian said that the State of NH has a records
retention schedule.
Ray Cote said that this is a short-term policy. This should be actively pursued. Ray suggested that
personal use should be considered.
Dick said that there is a rich history in the district wrestling with this issue. It needs further discussion.
Ray said that what he is suggesting that the personal email should not go out with a conval.edu
statement.

b. Field Trip Proposal (Board Vote Required) (Pgs. 44-45)
1. Peterborough Elementary School Life Skills students will travel to Waterville Valley
and Dartmouth Skiway in January and March as part of the Special Olympics Winter
Games
Butch Estey moved to allow that PES Life Skills students travel to Waterville Valley and
Dartmouth in January and March. Dan Harper second. Unanimous.

c. Athletic Fees Revenue (Pg. 46)
Dick said that this information is provided in response to a Board members request. Dan Harper said
that he was never a fan of charging students an athletic fee. Marian said that it is on the revenue side
and goes into a general fund.
Dick said that one would be hard pressed to find a school that does not charge to get into a
basketball game.
Tom clarified that students are charged a fee to participate in sports with a maximum family
contribution. Tom said that Dan is referencing families who might be too embarrassed to ask for a
waiver if they cannot afford to pay the fee. He added that costs have gone up for sports programs
and items have been added. He said that it could be brought up at Budget & Property. The figures
provided tonight reflect gate receipts and athletic participation fees.

d. Finalized Board Visitation Schedule (Pg. 47)
Provided in tonight® packet.

e. Monthly Events Calendar (Pg. 48)
Distributed tonight. (See Attachment #1) Gail asked that we try to get one month ahead in the
calendar.

6. Board Sub-Committee Reports
a. Education
Beverly Bacon said that they would meet next on Monday, September 24th at 7:00 p.m.

b. Budget and Property
Craig said that B & P met last night. Great updates on many different issues were provided. Modular
classrooms are full and successful. A RFQ review took place. Energy management was reviewed.



Marian, Jon and Charlie have done a tremendous amount of work making us more efficient. TES
energy management system was overviewed. Rather than send a man out, changes can be made
on-line. In addition, enrollment figures were reviewed. Bus routes are a

topic of discussion to maximize travel. The next meetings will take place on October 1% and the 22"
at 7:00 p.m.

c. Personnel
Will no longer be on the agenda. The Sub-Committee is disbanding.

d. Communications
Rescheduled. Date to be announced.

e. Drug Committee
Butch Estey said that the committee would meet next on October 11" at 7:00 p.m.

7. Educational Reports
a. Principals
None.

b. Teacher
Beth San Martino said that all of the open houses are coming up. All are welcome. Teachers are
preparing for them.

c. Student
None. Sue Dell reported that Hannah Webber would be the student rep in the future.

8. Old Business

a. Update on Human Resources Director Position
Tom said that the interview process has begun. The process will continue. Additional advertising will
take place in a broader fashion with expectations better defined.

b. Setting Board Goals
Tom said that a handout was distributed tonight (See two attachments #2 and #3)
Last years and this years proposed goals are detailed. The top five are main goals and agreement is
sought. The list of eighteen is both Superintendent goals and Board goals.
Bart said that the language should be changed in item 14 to @valuate the implementation and
effectiveness of the drug policies.O It was agreed.
Gail said that she views the most important problem as getting the budget under control and said that
there is no mention on the list.
Bart said that the budget is examined every year. Gail said that she is looking for a budget that the
taxpayers can afford. We need to develop a way to control the budget on the basis of that the
programs are worthwhile in a way that we can afford. We need to look at things carefully. She asked
what role the School Board intends to play in budget evaluation and the budget setting process.
Craig said that he wants to see what the new Superintendent can bring to us. There is a learning
curve. Craig said that he is confident that the new team is going to bring forth opportunities for
change. Craig added that he was unsure if he wanted this as a goal and said that the budget is
evaluated every year.
Gail suggested that we establish procedures for evaluating and monitoring the level of the budget and
its growth. Bart suggested that we develop a procedure. Gail agreed that procedure should be used.



Gail asked if $ 42 million is the right level. Bart suggested that we evaluate and monitor the budget.
Craig said that next spring we should hit the ground running with a new budget season. Gail said that
the five goals are wonderful but people on the street care about money.

Tom asked for other input about Board Goals. He asked if it was the consensus to look at the five
goals plus Gails.

Mary Allen said that hurtles exist in meeting state requirements. She wondered if looking at what we
want every Conval student to know should be considered. She added that the competency is a real,
all-year item.

Beverly asked if she was talking competency or graduation requirements. Mary said that it is not the
old competency, it is something more. It is what we envision a competent ConVal graduate to be
able to do. Graduation requirements fall into place form there.

Bart said that Bev is considering where the Education Committee is going. He suggested that this be
considered there. Tom said that he views it differently. This goal is a Board issue and not just an
Education item. Bart said that research needs to take place and he questioned whether this Board
was competent to do this. Craig suggested that there are different components. Bart said that the
Board plate is pretty full. This issue could dominate a meeting. In a smaller committee level a step-
by-step approach can exist. The Board can take it from there. Craig said that when opportunity for
conversation exists it is extremely valuable. Mary said that she does not care where it takes place, it
is important to have as a goal.

Craig suggested that the Administration team determine where this fall. Tom said that in terms of
importance this has been a major item. He questioned if this should be made a Board goal. Craig
hoped that it would be finished this year. Tom suggested that the word @ompetencyObe removed for
clarification.

Linda Potter said that this is where we started back with LEAP. She asked that we give Dick
Bergeron the opportunity to get us there. She asked the Board to keep in mind the priorities and she
said that he would get the Board to the point of where we want to be. Tom said that the Board has a
responsibility of what we want the ConVal student to be.

Mary Allen said that this is huge and she is aware. She said that this is something that we ought to
be striving towards that is in the forefront of our discussion.

Dick Bergeron said that it is almost exit expectations. By the time a ConVal student graduates we
have certain expectations that we have of that student.

Bart said that we are always considering what the end result that we want is. Tom said that we need
to frame it.

Marian said that this conversation, in her mind, would drive every other single thing that we do.

Don Johnson said that it is more than a year® goal. He suggested working on the wording to include
words such as @rogressingOand @vorking towards.O

Craig suggested that we come up with some of the milestones.

Mary suggested that we throw it back to the Education Committee.

Dick said that item 15 should read G'he Board will create and implement an effective evaluative
system for the Superintendent. The evaluative tool created by the Board will be applied bi-annually.
The evaluation instrument will provide meaningful feedback on performance responsibilities detailed
by the School Board.O

c. Board Meeting Structure
Tom asked for a motion to no longer have a Personnel subcommittee. These duties will be the
responsibility of the Superintendent to bring forward to the Board for a period of one year.

Dan Harper motioned to disband the Personnel Committee. Bart Goodeve second.
Unanimous.



Tom said that discussion on restructuring has taken place to work as a Board.

Bart asked for a descriptive term for the two Board meetings to distinguish the two.

The thought is to narrow down the subcommittee meetings. Don said that we might find that material
cannot be covered in two monthly meetings.

Gail suggested that specialized topic meetings take place at the SAU rather than the schools. Tom
agreed that it could be differentiated.

9. New Business
None.

10. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)

Marian certified that manifests 29 b 34 totaling $ 331,753.96 and Payroll 6 totaling $ 827,877.44 and
Sub Run 102 and 103 totaling $ 10,298.79 have been reviewed by me and found to be proper
charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or services received and have
been properly processed prior to the submittal to the School board.

Craig Hicks moved to accept the approval of the manifests as read. Bart Goodeve second.
Unanimous.

11. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A:3.llc
a. Negotiations
b. Personnel

Dan Harper moved to enter non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,lic at
8:52 p.m. for a legal issue and one matter of negotiation. Bart Goodeve second. Unanimous

Craig Hicks moved to exit non-public session at 9:25 p.m. Butch Estey second. Unanimous.

Craig Hicks moved to seal the minutes of non-public session at 9:26 p.m. Butch Estey
second. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



